
 
  

 
  

 
 
 

  
      

  
  
  
  

 
   

 
  

 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 

  
     

     
     

      
 
 
 

LEBANON COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BUDGET COMMITTEE MEETING AGENDA 

February 9, 2017, 7:00 PM 
Hamilton Creek School 

32135 Berlin Road, Lebanon, Oregon 97355 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

B. BUDGET COMMITTEE TRAINING 
1. Roles and Responsibilities 
2. Financial Information 
3. Budget Parameters 

C. REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 

D. PUBLIC COMMENT 

E. ADJOURN 

FUTURE BUDGET COMMITTEE MEETINGS 
April 27, 2017 7:00 PM District Office – Board Room 
May 11, 2017 7:00 PM District Office – Board Room 
May 25, 2017 7:00 PM District Office – Board Room 
June 8, 2017 6:00 PM Public Budget Hearing – Pioneer School 



 
 

 

    
   

  
   

  
  

 

   
 
 
 

    
 

 

Budget Meeting Materials 
By: Linda Darling, Business Director 

February 9, 2017 

Included in your packet are just a few of the items that will be presented during the Budget Committee 
Meeting on February 9th starting at 7:00 PM at Hamilton Creek School (32135 Berlin Rd, Lebanon, OR 
97355).   

Renee Sessler from Oregon School Board Association (OSBA) will be presenting a training on the Roles 
and Responsibilities of the Budget Committee.  To prepare you for this, the OSBA Budget Committee 
Handbook has been included in your packet.  Renee will also be walking you through a process for 
understanding school funding, and an exercise to generate the budget parameters that will be used when 
the 2017-2018 Proposed Budget is developed.  There will be additional handouts during the presentation.  

Please mark your calendar for the following dates: 
April 27th 7:00 PM at District Office 
May 11th 7:00 PM at District Office 
May 25th 7:00 PM at District Office 

If you have any questions prior to the meeting, please don’t hesitate to contact me. 
Linda Darling 
541.259.8945 
linda.darling@lebanon.k12.or.us 

H:\Budget\Budget Committee\2017-2018\2-9-17 materials\Budget Meeting 2-9-17.docx 

mailto:linda.darling@lebanon.k12.or.us


 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

      
 

        
               
 

      
 

      
 

       
   
         
 

       
      

       
 

        
 

     
 

    
   
        
 

        
    
 

          
         

  
 

 
 
            
 
 
 
 
 
 

   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Lebanon Community School District #9 
Lebanon, Oregon 

ADOPTED BUDGET CALENDAR FOR 2017-2018 

November 17, 2016 * Regular Board Meeting: Review/Approve Budget Calendar 

February 9, 2017 * Special Board/Budget Meeting: Budget Committee Training, and Set Budget 
Parameters 

February 10 – April 27, 2017 * Preparation of Proposed Budget: Budget Officer 

March 30, 2017 * Send notice of Budget Committee meeting to paper (3-4 days prior to publication) 

April 5, 2017 * Publication of public notice of Budget Committee meeting in newspaper and 
webpage 
(not more than 30 days before the meeting and & not less than 10 days before meeting). 

April 27, 2017 * Budget Committee Meeting #1:  Present budget message and proposed budget 

May 11, 2017 * Budget Committee Meeting #2: Continued budget discussion 

May 25, 2017 * Budget Committee Meeting #3: Target date for approval of budget 

May 26, 2017 * Send notice of Budget Hearing to paper (3-4 days prior to publication) 

May 31, 2107 * Publication of Notice of Budget Hearing, Financial Summary and Fund 
Summaries 
(not more than 30 days nor less than 5 days prior to the hearing). 

June 8, 2017 * Public Budget Hearing & Special Board Meeting on budget as approved by 
Budget Committee 

Adopt final budget and make appropriations (after Budget Hearing). 
The amount of tax levy in the published budget may not be increased, a new fund 
added, or expenditures increased by more than 10 percent without full 
republication and another public hearing. 

(Enclosure D-2) 

H:\Budget\Budget Committee\2017-2018\BC calendar 17-18.docx 



Budget
Committee 

handbook 

for School Districts and 

Education Service Districts 

HOREGON 
SCHOOL 
BOARDS 

ASSOCIATION 



Budget 
Committee 

han db ook 

H OREGON 
SCHOOL 
BOARDS 

ASSOCIATION 

Copyright 2012, Oregon School Boards Association 
PO Box 1068, Salem, OR 97308 
(503) 588-2800 or 1-800-578-OSBA 
www.osba.org 

http:www.osba.org


 

 

 

Contents: 
Oregon state law requires a budget  Page 1 

Budget period Page 1 

Budget officer Page 1 

The budget committee  Page 1 

Budget committee membership  Page 2 

Term of office Page 2 

Budget committee offi cers  Page 2 

Budget committee meetings Page 2 

Duties, responsibilities  Page 2 

Budget checklist  Page 3 

The board of directors’ role in the budget committee process  Page 4 

Suggested board activities and time line for budget process  Page 4 

Supplemental budget Page 5 

Frequently asked questions  Page 6 

Suggested budget committee policy  Page 10 

Suggested procedure  Page 11 

Glossary  Page 12 

i 



 

 
 
 

H OREGON 
SCHOOL 
BOARDS 

ASSOCIATION 

OREGON SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOCIATION 

The Budget Committee
plays an
important role 

Although the majority of school funding comes from state sources, local 
budget committees remain an important part of a district’s decision-

making processes in setting local budget priorities. 
The budget committee process provides an ideal forum for a district’s 
citizens to discuss priorities for maintaining good schools, programs and 
facilities, how to deal with state and federal requirements and how best to 
allocate resources. 

ii 



 
 

 

  

 

 
   

    

 
  

  

 
 

  
 

 

 
 

OREGON SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOCIATION 

Oregon state law
requires a
budget 

The state requires every district to pass an annual budget [ORS 294.338]. Oregon 
law outlines a procedure for preparing, presenting and administering the budget. 

The statute requires citizen involvement in the budget preparation and public disclo-
sure of the budget before its final adoption by the district board of directors. 

Budget period 
A district’s budget must cover at least one fiscal year (July 1 through June 30). The 
district, however, may pass an ordinance, resolution or charter that requires prepar-
ing a two-year budget. If a district develops a two-year budget, it must certify the 
property tax to the county assessor for each of the fi scal years. [ORS 294.323(1) 
(2)] 

The budgeting process includes preparation, approval and formal adoption. The 
final product is the district’s financial plan that estimates expenditures and revenues 
for a fiscal year. By the final day of every fiscal year (June 30), the district’s budget 
for the upcoming year must be finalized. 

Budget officer 
Oregon law requires a district to designate a budget officer, commonly the super-
intendent or business manager. The budget officer, working under the direction of 
the superintendent, creates a draft budget document prior to the first meeting of the 
district’s budget committee. [ORS 294.331] 

The budget committee 
Every district must set up a budget committee, which is the vehicle that enables the 
public to participate in the budget process. [ORS 294.414]; ESDs [ORS334.240] 
After receiving the proposed budget from the budget officer, the committee must 
hold meetings to examine and possibly revise the document. The committee must 
then make the revised budget available for public comment. After holding the public 
hearing, the committee may make additional revisions and hold more public hear-
ings before sending the budget to the district’s board for fi nal adoption. 

Once the budget committee approves the proposed budget and sends it to the district 
board, the committee has no authority over the budget until the process begins again 
for the next budget cycle. 

1 



 
  

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

    
  

 

 

 

 
 

   
 

 
 

 

 

 

   
   

 
 

 
 
 

 

   

 
 

OREGON SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOCIATION 

Budget committee 
meetings are open to 
the public. 

Budget committee membership 
All district board members must be members of the budget committee plus an 
equal number of qualified district voters who are appointed by the board. [ORS 
294.414(2)] An education service district budget (ESD) committee must include the 
ESD board and school board members (or designees) from the districts in the ESD 
boundary. [ORS 334.240] 
To be eligible for appointment, a school district budget committee candidate must: 
 Not be an officer, employee or agent of the district [ORS 294.414(4)] 
 Be a qualified voter of the district [ORS 294.414(2)] 

All budget committee members have equal authority and responsibility. Members 
establish their own operating procedures as a committee. 
Committee members may not receive compensation for serving. [ORS 294.414(3)] 
If the school district or ESD board is unable to appoint qualified people to vacan-
cies, the budget committee may proceed with a reduced number of members. For 
example, if a five-member board, after seeking qualified citizens, can fill only three 
of the five citizen positions, the budget committee can function with eight members 
rather than 10. A majority would then be five instead of six. [ORS 294.414(2)] 

Term of office 
If the budget committee prepares one-year budgets, the board appoints the citizen 
members for three-year terms. The terms are staggered so that one-third of the ap-
pointed members’ terms end every year. [ORS 294.414(5)] 
If the budget committee prepares a biennial budget, appointed members serve four-
year terms, with the terms staggered so that one-fourth of appointed members’ terms 
end each year. [ORS 294.414(6)] 
If an appointed committee member is unable to serve an entire term, the district 
board must appoint someone to fill the vacancy. [ORS 294.414(7)] 

Budget committee offi cers 
At its first meeting the budget committee must elect a presiding officer from among 
its appointed or elected members. [ORS 294.414(9)] It may elect a vice chair, but it 
is not required. 

Meetings 
Budget committee meetings are open to the public. A majority of committee mem-
bers must be present to convene a meeting and only budget committee business may 
be transacted during the meeting. A majority of the committee is required to approve 
any motion. (A majority is one more than half the committee members.) Approval 
of any motion requires at least six “yes” votes with a budget committee of 10 mem-
bers or at least eight “yes” votes with a committee of 14. [ORS 174.130, Attorney 
General Opinion 38 (1978), p. 1935] 
The committee must hold at least one meeting to receive the draft budget, the super-
intendent’s budget message and provide the public an opportunity to ask questions 
and comment. [ORS 294.426] 

Duties, responsibilities 
Notification of the first budget committee meeting must appear in a newspaper of 
general circulation. Specifically, the budget officer must either (1) publish notice 
twice in a newspaper not more than 30 days before the meeting, or (2) publish once 
in the paper not more than 30 days before the meeting and publish on the district’s 
website at least 10 days before the meeting, or (3) mail notice to the members of 
the public not less than 10 days from the date of the meeting. This notice must state 
the purpose, time and place of the meeting, where the budget document is available, 
and that the budget committee will deliberate at the meeting; it must also state that 
members of the public may ask questions and comment on the budget at a specific 
time or meeting. For specific requirements on meeting notification see ORS 
294.426(3-5). 

2 



 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

  
 

  

 
  

 

  
  

 
 

  
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

OREGON SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOCIATION 

The committee hears the budget message, receives the budget document, hears 
patrons and announces the time and place for any subsequent meetings. [ORS 
294.426] 
Minutes of the meetings are kept and made available upon request. The committee 
reviews the budget as proposed and makes needed changes. Additional committee 
meetings, which are open to the public, must follow the procedure for public notice 
required for regular school board meetings. [ORS 294.406; ORS 294.428] 
The budget committee may request information for the preparation or revision of 
the budget document from any district officer or employee. It may request the at-
tendance of any employee at its meetings. Such requests by the budget committee 
should go through the superintendent or budget offi cer. [ORS 294.428(3)] 
The budget committee does not approve new personnel, employee contracts or 
salary schedules. Neither does it negotiate salary contracts. The budget committee 
may request and review previously adopted salary schedules, negotiated contracts 
and other materials that have a fiscal impact on the budget document. Any deviation 
from this requirement could cause a liability for the district in regard to negotiated 
labor agreements and other contracts the district currently has in place. 
By the time the budget committee receives the budget message and budget docu-
ment, many hours of work have been spent developing the proposed budget. The 
budget officer appointed by the board coordinates these efforts with faculty, staff 
and other administrators. 
The budget committee approves the budget document as submitted by the bud-
get officer or as revised by the committee. The committee recommends a level of 
spending for the year. It also specifies the property tax amount or rate for all funds 
in the approved budget. 
The budget committee’s duties cease after it has approved a proposed budget. The 
district board holds a final hearing on the budget document. [ORS 294.453] The 
document presented at this hearing is the budget as recommended by the budget 
committee. The board may make additional adjustments after the hearing, but not 
before. However, there are limits to the changes permitted. In a one-year budget,  if 
those changes increase property taxes by any amount or increase expenditures in 
any fund by more than 10 percent or more than $5,000 – whichever is greater – the 
district must republish the budget document and hold another budget hearing. In 
a biennial budget, if the changes increase property taxes by an amount or increase 
expenditures in any fund by more than 10 percent or $10,000 – whichever is greater 
– the district must republish the budget document and hold another budget hearing. 
[ORS 294.456] 
The board may reconvene the budget committee at a later date if fi nancial condi-
tions in the district change. The board can call this meeting; however,1 it is not 
required by law. The board must give public notice in a way similar to the notice 
given for the first budget committee meeting. 

Budget checklist 
 First meeting: 

o Elect presiding officer (required) and vice chair (optional). 
o Establish budget committee procedural rules. 
o Receive budget message and proposed budget. 
o Establish a meeting calendar. 
o Request additional information on budget items. 
o Additional steps: 

Make sure the budget documents are available to anyone requesting 
copies. 
Provide opportunities for district patrons to ask questions and make 
comments about the proposed budget. This is not a strict requirement 
for the first meeting; it may occur at any budget committee meeting. 

3 



 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

  

OREGON SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOCIATION 

 Final meeting: 
o Approve budget and send it to the district board of directors. 
o Specify the tax amount or rate for each fund imposing a property tax. 

The board of directors’ role in the budget committee process 
The school or ESD board of directors is the governing body with the ultimate 
responsibility for district operations. The board’s duties and responsibilities encom-
pass many topics, including, but not limited to: 
 Setting operational policy 
 Setting district budget goals and adopting the district’s budget 
 Determining staffi ng levels 
 Negotiating employee contracts 
 Appointing committee members 
 With specific regard to the budget process, the board is responsible for appoint-

ing the citizen budget committee members in accordance with ORS 294.414(2) 
and adopting the district’s fi nal budget. [ORS 294.456] 

Suggested board activities and timeline for budget process: 
 Designate the budget offi cer. 
 Appoint citizen budget committee members. 
 Approve budget calendar. 
 Publish required notices. 
 Participate in budget committee meetings. 
 Hold public hearing on budget committee approved budget. 
 Provide citizens with information about the budget. 
 No later than June 30, adopt budget, make appropriations, declare and catego-

rize tax levy. 
 No later than July 15, certify levy to the county assessor. 
 Receive financial reports monthly during the year. 
 Make any budget transfers of appropriations which may be required during the 

year. 
 Determine if any supplemental budget is required. 
 Review audit (examination of annual financial report) and auditor’s comments 

regarding compliance with legal requirements and Generally Accepted Ac-
counting Principles (GAAP). 

4 



 
  

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

  
   

OREGON SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOCIATION 

, 
:;, ____ _ 
J 

Budget Process 

I 
L 

a1 Dfi'.r-'i '' 

• El9clio ffiSii tie lleld eal1ier. 
"See lhr:1 Secrel:Jly cif s~ ,5le,t,Jian,s· 

M""11!'.,.\ ,;ir ,;xmb;K!tttlrti ~tlflfli; 
fou.d.us l datea oHi r,,;i . 

Supplemental budget 
By transferring appropriations (allocating money from one fund in the budget to 
another fund), the district usually has enough flexibility to carry out the programs 
prescribed in an adopted budget. But occasionally an adopted budget gives no 
authority to make certain expenditures, or it does not address an instance when 
revenues are received for which the board had no previous knowledge. In these 
cases, a supplemental budget may be appropriate to authorize expenditures or spend 
additional revenues in a current fi scal year. 
Oregon budget law does not provide for the involvement of the local budget com-
mittee in adopting supplemental budgets. The district board may adopt a supple-
mental budget at a regular public meeting if it gives prior notice and the expendi-
tures in the supplemental budget are not more than 10 percent of the budget fund be-
ing adjusted. If the expenditures are higher, the board must publish the supplemental 
budget and hold a hearing for this supplemental budget. Public notice must go out 
not less than five days before the hearing, along with a summary of the changes 
proposed in the funds that differ by more than 10 percent from the previous budget. 

5 



  
 

 

   
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

  

 

  
 

 
  

 
 

 

  

 
 

 

  
 

 
 

 

OREGON SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOCIATION 

Frequently
asked 
questions 

 What is a budget committee? 
Answer: The budget committee is a school district’s or ESD’s fi scal planning 
advisory committee. It consists of the elected board members and an equal 
number of qualified district voters appointed by the board. 

 Who can serve on a budget committee? 
Answer: The board may appoint any qualified voter of the district to serve on 
the budget committee, except school district officers, agents or employees. 

 How long do members serve? 
Answer: Most budget committee members receive appointments for three-year 
terms. Terms are staggered so that approximately one-third of the terms expire 
each year. Members may be reappointed for successive terms. If a district 
adopts a biennial budget, the terms are four years, with one-fourth of the terms 
expiring each year. 

 Are budget committee members paid for their work? 
Answer: No. Budget committee members may not receive any compensation 
for their work on the budget. They may be eligible, however, for travel or meal 
expenses resulting from meetings or other authorized committee functions. 

 What is the budget committee’s main function? 
Answer: The budget committee holds a series of public meetings to review, 
discuss, make additions or deletions, and approve the budget that the district’s 
budget offi cer proposes. After finishing its deliberations, the budget commit-
tee approves the budget and sends it to the district board of directors for final 
approval. The budget committee also specifies the maximum tax rate or amount 
for any fund imposing a property tax levy. 

 May the budget committee meet and discuss the budget before the fi rst meeting 
for which public notice is published? 
Answer: No. If the district releases the proposed budget before the fi rst budget 
committee meeting, that document is for use by individual budget committee 
members. The committee should not get together in person, by telephone or via 
e-mail before the first public meeting to discuss or deliberate on the proposed 
budget. Any deliberation on the proposed budget must take place at a properly 
advertised public meeting. 

 What sorts of things may the budget committee discuss before the fi rst meeting 
for which it issues public notice? 
Answer: The committee may engage in the following activities before the first 
public meeting: 

o Receive training on the budget committee process, calendar, expecta-
tions for committee members, etc. 

o Discuss committee members’ preferences for ground rules, rules of 
order, conduct of meetings, method of voting / reaching consensus, etc. 

o Receive orientation on the district and its various departments or pro-
grams and staffing, and on the activities or services that each provides. 

o Receive orientation on the budget document, the fund structure and the 
types of activities or programs and expenditures made from each fund in 
the budget. 

o Discuss the current year budget or prior year budgets. 

6 



  
 

  
  

 
  

  
 

 
   

 
 

 

 
 

 
   

 
 

  

 
 
 

 

  
 

 
 

  
  

 

 
  

 
  

  
 

 
 

 
 

 

OREGON SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOCIATION 

 What topics must the budget committee not discuss before the fi rst meeting? 
Answer: The budget committee must not discuss any of the following matters 
before the first meeting for which proper public notice occurs: 

o Specific estimates of revenue, expenditures or appropriation amounts 
associated with any fund, object classification or line item, resource or 
requirement 

o The question of whether to fund specific programs or expenditures 
o The question of whether to impose any specific tax levy, or the amount 

of any levy 

 What happens at the first budget committee meeting? 
Answer: The budget committee elects officers, receives the budget message, 
gives citizens an opportunity to comment on the budget, sets dates for future 
meetings and adopts rules of order. These rules should establish an operating 
procedure for the review process. The committee may adopt Robert’s Rules of 
Order or establish its own rules. 

 What is the budget message? 
Answer: The budget message explains the budget. It gives the budget com-
mittee and the public information that will help them understand the proposed 
budget. The law says the budget message must contain a brief description of 
the financial policies reflected in the proposed budget and explain the important 
features of the budget. 
The budget message must also explain significant changes from last year’s bud-
get in revenues or appropriations and explain any major changes in financial 
policies. 

 Who prepares the budget message? Who reads it? 
Answer: The budget message is prepared by or under the direction of the super-
intendent. It must be in writing so it can become part of the budget committee’s 
records. The superintendent delivers the budget message to the committee at its 
fi rst meeting. 

 What other information is available to the budget committee? 
Answer: The budget committee may request and receive from any district 
officer or employee any information it requires during consideration of the pro-
posed budget. The budget committee may also require staff members to attend 
budget committee meetings. Such requests by the budget committee should be 
made through the superintendent. 

 Who are the budget committee officers? 
Answer: The law requires only one actual position—the presiding offi cer. The 
presiding officer’s duties are to chair budget committee meetings. However, the 
budget committee may elect a vice chair to conduct meetings in the presiding 
offi cer’s absence. 

 What happens at subsequent budget meetings? 
Answer: Generally, the second meeting and other subsequent meetings take 
place at least one week after the first meeting. This practice allows members to 
review the proposed budget document. Committee members may arrange with 
the superintendent or budget officer to visit schools during this week, ask about 
specific budget items, request more information or indicate areas of interest 
the committee should discuss at future meetings. In later meetings, the entire 
budget receives a thorough review, fund-by-fund and section-by-section. 
The committee must take steps to keep accurate minutes of each meeting and 
approve them at the beginning of the next meeting. The minutes are the official 

The budget message 
must explain 
changes from last 
year’s budget. 

7 



 

  

  
 

 

  
  

 
  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

  

 

 

 
 

  
  

 

 
  

 

  

 

   
  

  

 

 
 

 

OREGON SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOCIATION 

To establish a stable 
fi nancial plan, 
districts should not 
outspend their revenue. 

record of these meetings. Because state law mandates the budget process, dis-
tricts need to document that their proceedings comply with the law. The official 
minutes serve this purpose. 

 How many meetings must the budget committee hold? 
Answer: The number of meetings may vary from year to year. Some district 
budget committees meet only once. In other school districts, budget commit-
tees may need to meet several times. Many varying factors influence how often 
budget committees meet (e.g., the degree of detail in the budget documents, 
size of the district, number of separate funds, presentation of the budget and the 
personalities of committee members). 

 May budget committee members ask questions of the superintendent and bud-
get officer between meetings? 
Answer: Yes. Saving questions for “off-line” is often helpful and courteous to 
other budget committee members, especially when the formal meeting agenda 
is full. Checking with the superintendent or budget officer between meetings 
lets members explore budget items of interest in greater detail. Such ques-
tioning also helps the superintendent or budget officer by indicating specific 
concerns that may be of interest to the entire budget committee. 

 May I consult with other budget committee members about details in the bud-
get other than at budget committee meetings? 
Answer: This is a tricky question. The answer is “yes,” if a majority of com-
mittee members is not present. If a quorum is on hand for such a discussion, 
however, the meeting violates Oregon’s public meetings law. Budget committee 
discussions must take place in a public meeting. Oregon uses the budget com-
mittee process to ensure open public involvement and full disclosure of budget 
deliberations. Circumventing the budget law puts the district and its property 
tax levy at risk. Remember, all deliberations of the budget committee must be 
held at a public budget meeting. 

 What questions should a budget committee ask about a district’s revenue 
sources? 
Answer: The following questions about revenue are critical to the committee’s 
deliberations: 

o Are expenditure forecasts expected to be within the district’s appropria-
tions? Budget law requires districts to stay within their appropriations or 
transfer appropriations prior to making any “over-expenditure.” [ORS 
294.450] 

o Are we outspending our current year revenue? To establish a stable 
financial plan, districts should not outspend their revenue. If this 
becomes necessary, however, expenditures should occur as a planned 
process that recognizes use of reserves is a one-time source of funding. 

 Does the budget committee have any other duties? 
Answer: At the final meeting, the committee approves the budget and estab-
lishes the tax levy. Its work is now finished. Frequently, budget committee 
members offer to help the board and administration in any public meetings or 
appearances concerning the budget. The administration and the board of direc-
tors may also consult the budget committee if financial conditions change. 

 After the budget committee approves the budget and recommends it to the 
board of directors, what action does the board take? 
Answer: The board of directors must publish a financial summary of the budget 
that the budget committee developed. The board publishes the first notice of 
the budget hearing with the financial summary. At the public hearing the board 
hears citizens’ input on the budget that the budget committee approved. Fol-
lowing the hearing, and no later than June 30, the board must adopt the final 

8 



 

   
  

 
 

 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

  

 
 

 

 
 

  
  

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
  

OREGON SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOCIATION 

budget, make appropriations, certify the property tax levy rate or amount to the 
county assessor and categorize the levy. 

 When do budget committee members get a copy of the budget? 
Answer: The budget officer distributes copies of the proposed budget at the 
first budget committee meeting, when the superintendent presents the budget 
message. Advanced copies of the budget may go to budget committee members 
by mail. 

 What if the budget committee doesn’t agree with the board’s changes to the 
budget? 
Answer: The board of directors has the right to make changes to the budget 
that the committee submits. In a one-year budget, however, the amount of the 
estimated expenditure for each fund may not increase more than 10 percent 
or $5,000 (whichever is greater), and the total property tax to be levied may 
not exceed the amount of the rate shown in the budget (as approved by the 
budget committee and published with the notice of the budget hearing) unless 
the district republishes a summary of the revised budget and holds another 
public hearing. In a biennial budget, if the changes increase property taxes by 
an amount or increase expenditures in any fund by more than 10 percent or 
$10,000 (whichever is greater), the district must republish the budget document 
and hold another budget hearing. 
Budget committee members are free to attend that hearing and voice their opin-
ions of changes made by the board. 

 What other information is available to the budget committee? 
Answer: The budget committee may request any information required during 
consideration of the proposed budget. A majority of the committee must autho-
rize reports that require time or expense to prepare. Individual members do not 
have authority to ask staff to prepare documents that have not previously been 
published. The budget committee may also require attendance of staff members 
at budget committee meetings. 

 May the budget committee establish or delete educational programs or ser-
vices? 
Answer: The budget committee’s role is not to establish or eliminate specific 
educational programs or services directly. State standards and the board of 
directors’ budget parameters give the budget officer and administrative staff 
general guidelines for budget development. The budget officer then prepares a 
budget that meets state requirements and the board’s parameters. It is this pro-
posed budget which the budget committee considers during the meeting. It is 
possible that the tax levy rate the budget committee sets increases or decreases 
the district’s resources, which may reduce programs or provide funding for 
additional programs. Public participation at budget committee meetings may 
influence decisions in either direction. 

 What is a supplemental budget? 
Answer: School districts or ESDs may find it necessary to prepare a supplemen-
tal budget. Supplemental budgets are authorized under these circumstances: 

o An occurrence, condition or need arises which was not known at the time 
the budget was adopted. 

o Additional funds are made available after the budget was adopted. 
o The board wishes to use insurance proceeds for purposes other than re-

placing buildings or equipment that were involuntarily destroyed. 
The procedures for supplemental budgets are the same as those required for the 
annual budget. These procedures include publishing a notice five to 30 days 
prior to the board meeting and board approval of the supplemental budget. 

9 



  

  
 

 
 

 
  

 
  

 
 

 

  

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

OREGON SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOCIATION 

 Where can I find the law that governs the creation and operation of the budget 
committees? 
Answer: The budget committee is a requirement of Oregon’s Local Budget 
Law. This law appears in the Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS), beginning at 
ORS 294.414 for School Districts; ORS 334.240 for ESDs. 

Suggested budget committee policy 
District boards must establish budget committees in accordance with the provisions 
of ORS 294.414, and ORS 334.240 for ESDs. 
The budget committee must consist of all board members and an equal number of 
members who are qualified district voters appointed by the board. If no qualified 
voters are willing to serve, the board of directors serves as the budget committee. 
District officers, agents or employees of the district may not serve as members of 
the budget committee. 
Most appointed budget committee members serve three-year terms. The terms are 
staggered so that one-third of the terms are appointed each year. If the district adopts 
a biennial budget, the terms are four years, with one-fourth of the terms expiring 
each year. 
If any appointed member is unable to serve the term for which he/she was ap-
pointed, the board must fill the vacancy by appointment for the remainder of the 
unexpired term. [ORS 294.336] 

SAMPLE LETTER TO 
PROSPECTIVE BUDGET COMMITTEE 

APPOINTEES 
Dear _____________________: 

Thank you for your interest in serving on the _________________ District/ 
ESD budget committee. To help us make a careful and objective decision, please 
complete the enclosed candidate information sheet. 

The budget committee meetings take place approximately every week during the 
months of _________________ and _________________. 

If you have questions about how much time you must commit to service on the 
budget committee, please contact me or any board member. 

Please return this candidate information sheet by _________________. The 
board will arrange for personal interviews with all candidates before making a 
final decision on _________________. 

Your interest is appreciated. 

Sincerely, 

Board Chair 

10 



 

 

 
 

 

OREGON SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOCIATION 

SAMPLE INFORMATION SHEET FOR BUDGET 
COMMITTEE CANDIDATE 

Please fill out and return by _____ to the school district/ESD adminis-
trative office, (address). 

Last Name First Name Initial Date 

Business address ___________________ _ 

Business telephone ___________________ _ 

Home address ____________________ _ 

Home telephone ____________________ _ 

Occupation _____________________ _ 

Number of years in district/ESD region ____________ _ 

Schools attended --------------------
Do you have children in the school district or ESD region? ______ _ 

Which schools? ---------------------
Have you worked on any school or ESD committees? _______ _ 

If so, which committees? _________________ _ 

Precinct where you are registered to vote ____________ _ 

Other community or business activities ____________ _ 

What qualifications do you have that will help you to be a member of the budget 
committee? _____________________ _ 

Suggested procedure 
When a vacancy occurs on the budget committee, utilize the following procedure: 
 The board declares the budget committee position open. 
 Issue notice of a vacancy, with the following information: 

o The position number 
o Deadline for receiving applications 
o Person whom applicants should contact, e.g., superintendent 
o Qualifications for holding office 
o Term of appointment 
o Date appointment will occur 

The board chair should send a letter to everyone who submits his or her name for 
consideration. The letter must provide general information about the budget com-
mittee. A candidate information sheet also will be sent. The candidate information 
sheet will be included in the board packet when the selection is made. (See example 
below) 
Interviews will be held with prospective appointees and appointment will be made 
at a regular or special board meeting. 

11 



  

  
   

  

 
 

 
 

   

    
  

 
 

 
 

    
  

  

    

 

 
 

  

   

  

   
 

 

OREGON SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOCIATION 

Glossary 

Adopted budget: The financial plan adopted by the district board of directors. 
The adopted budget forms a basis for appropriations. 

Appropriation: An authorization for spending specific amounts of money for 
specific purposes during specific periods of time, based on an adopted budget, and 
presented in a resolution or ordinance adopted by the district board. 

Assessed value: The taxable value of real or personal property. 

Associated payroll costs: Amounts of money the district pays on behalf 
of its employees. These amounts are not part of “gross salary,” but are in addition to 
it. While not paid directly to employees, such payments are still part of the cost of 
salaries and benefits. The following are examples of associated payroll costs: 

 Group health or life insurance 

 Contributions to Public Employees Retirement System 

 Social security (FICA) 

 Workers’ compensation 
 Unemployment insurance 

Biennial budget: A budget adopted for a 24-month period beginning July 1 
and ending June 30 of the next two succeeding calendar years. 

Budget: A written report showing the district’s comprehensive financial plan for 
one fiscal year. Districts have the option of budgeting for a two-year period. These 
budgets must show actual revenues and expenditures for each of the past two budget 
periods. They also provide estimates for the current and upcoming budget periods. 
Budgets must include a balanced statement of actual revenues and expenditures 
during each of the past two years, estimated revenues and expenditures for the 
current and upcoming years. 

Budget committee: The school district’s or ESD’s fiscal planning body, 
consisting of the board of directors and an equal number of qualified voters from the 
district. 

Budget message: The written explanation of the budget and district’s finan-
cial priorities (usually prepared by the superintendent). 

Budget offi cer: The board’s appointee who assembles budget material and 
prepares the proposed budget. 

Capital outlay:  Money spent on items that generally have a useful life of one 
or more years (e.g., machinery, land, furniture, equipment or buildings). 

Contingency :  Money allocated for use in cases of emergency or to cover 
unforeseen expenditures. Boards must take action to approve expenditures of these 
funds in specific budget areas. 

Expenditures: Total amount incurred if accounts are kept on an accrual basis; 
total amount paid if accounts are kept on a cash basis. 

Fiscal year: The 12-month period that begins on July 1 and ends on the follow-
ing June 30. 

Fund: A division in a budget that segregates independent fiscal and accounting re-
quirements; an entity within a district’s financial plan designated to carry on specific 
activities or to reach certain objectives. 

Permanent tax rate: A district’s property tax rate limit for operating pur-
poses. 

12 



 

  

    
 

    

   

   

   
 
 

   
 

   
 

    
 

   
 

  
 

 

 
 

OREGON SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOCIATION 

Program: A group of related activities that accomplish a major service or func-
tion for which the district board is responsible. 

Proposed budget: The financial and operating plan prepared by the budget 
officer and submitted to the public and budget committee for review. 

Reserve Fund: A fund established to accumulate money from one fiscal year to 
the next for a specifi c purpose. 

Resolution: A written motion for enactment by a board or committee, which 
contains background and the reasons behind the action of the body. 

Resources: The estimated fund balances on hand at the beginning of the budget 
period, plus all anticipated revenues. 

Revenues:  Monies received or anticipated by a district board from taxes or non-
tax sources. 

State School Fund: The major appropriation of state funding for public 
elementary and secondary schools. This fund consists of state money appropriated 
for distribution to school districts and ESDs according to a formula adopted by the A supplemental budget
legislature. 

cannot be used toSupplemental budget: A budget the board of directors prepares to meet 
unexpected needs or to spend revenues not anticipated at the time the regular budget 
was adopted. A supplemental budget cannot be used to increase a tax levy. increase a tax levy. 
Tax levy: The amount of property taxes required to pay general obligation 
bonded indebtedness or, for certain taxing districts, the amount of a local option tax 
voters approve for a specifi c purpose. 

Transfers: Amounts distributed from one fund to finance activities in another 
fund, shown as an expenditure in the originating fund and revenue in the receiving 
fund. 

Unappropriated ending fund balance: Amount set aside in the budget 
to be used as cash carryover to the next year’s budget. This balance provides the 
local government with needed cash flow until other money is received. This amount 
cannot be transferred by resolution or used through a supplemental budget during 
the fiscal year in which it is budgeted. 

For more information about the budget process, visit OSBA’s website and see “Resources, Budget and Finance,” or go to: 
http://www.osba.org/Resources/Article/Budget_and_Finance/Budget_committee_process.aspx 

Or contact: 
Oregon School Boards Association 
P.O. Box 1068, Salem, OR 97308-1068 
1201 Court St. NE, Suite 400, Salem, OR 97301-4188 
503-588-2800 or 800-578-6722 
www.osba.org 

You may also direct questions on the budget committee process to: 

Oregon Department of Revenue 
Assessment and Taxation 
Standards Section 
P.O. Box 14380 
Salem, OR 97309-5075 
Phone: (503) 945-8293 
Fax (503) 945-873 

13 

http:www.osba.org
http://www.osba.org/Resources/Article/Budget_and_Finance/Budget_committee_process.aspx


 
 

 
 

 

Budget 
Co"?'?'J\\~~ k 

H OREGON 
SCHOOL 
BOARDS 

ASSOCIATION 

The Budget Committee Handbook is available to all 
school district and education service district board 
chairs, superintendents and business officials. 
You can access publications online at www.osba.org. 
Click on My OSBA/Member Resources. 
For information about this publication and the full 
range of OSBA services, contact: 

Oregon School Boards Association 
PO Box 1068, Salem, OR 97308 
(503) 588-2800 or 1-800-578-OSBA 
www.osba.org 

http:www.osba.org
http:www.osba.org


H OREGON 
SCHOOL 
BOARDS 

ASSOCIATION 


